
December 15, 2020 City Council Meeting Agenda 1 of 2 | Pages  

  AGENDA  
FOR THE SPECIAL 

MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL FOR 

THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2020 

TIME: 6: 30 p.m. 

LOCATION: TELECONFERENCE/VIDEO CONFERENCING LINE 
Phone Number: 1-408-418-9388 
Meeting Weblink: 
https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?MTID=m8729532e48117f0ee1ff5b9e77 
c1f3d8 
Meeting number (access code): 126 380 6856 
Meeting password: bpBQQPUt386 (27277788 from phones and video systems) 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER: 
2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
3) ROLL CALL: 
4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
5) MAYOR’S REPORT: 
6) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 

a) City Administrator: 
b) Department Reports: 

i. Water Department 
ii. Solid Waste Department 
iii. Streets & Roads 
iv. Harbor & Parks 

7) PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
8) COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
9) CONSENT AGENDA 
10) MINUTES: 

a) Minutes of the  October 12, 2020, Special City Council Meeting, discussion and action item: 
b) Minutes of the  October 19, 2020, Special City Council Meeting, discussion and action item: 
c) Minutes of the November 17, 2020, City Council Meeting, discussion and action item: 
d) Minutes of the December 1, 2020, Regular City Council Meeting, discussion and action item: 

 
11) NEW BUSINESS: 

a) Resolution 20-12-15-01, adopting the alternative allocation method for the FY21 Shared 
Fisheries Business Tax Program and certifying that this allocation method fairly represents the 
distribution of significant effects of fisheries business activity inFMA19: Southern Southeast 
Area, discussion and action item: 

More ways to join on WebEx 
 

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only) 
+1-408-418-9388,,1265005856#38968258# 
Join by video system 

Dial 1263806856@webex.com 
You can also dial 173.243.2.68 and enter 
your meeting number: 126 380 6856 

Join by phone 
+1-408-418-9388 United States Toll 

https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?MTID=m8729532e48117f0ee1ff5b9e77c1f3d8
https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?MTID=m8729532e48117f0ee1ff5b9e77c1f3d8
mailto:1263806856@webex.com


December 15, 2020 City Council Meeting Agenda 1 of 2 | Pages  

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED: 
 

b) Review and discussion of the Minor Offence Fine Schedule and Procedures for Citations 
being issued and processed, discussion and action item: (This is for discussion and review 
only and will be brought forward at the next meeting as an Ordinance to change from a “per 
offence” fine schedule to a “graduated offence” fine schedule. Additionally, a resolution to 
adopt the procedures for processing citations and a policy for when the City will take 
additional action for violations to go uncorrected and fines unpaid.) 
  

 
12) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 
13) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 
14) ADJOURNMENT: 

 
POSTED: December 11, 2020 



1 of 1 | Pages December 15, 2020 City Council Meeting Agenda  

City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, Dec 15, 2020 6:30 pm | 1 hour 30 minutes | (UTC-09:00) Alaska 

 
Meeting Link: 
https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?MTID=m8729532e48117f0ee1ff5b9e77c1f3d8 

 
Meeting number: 126380 6856 

 
Password: bpBQQPUt386 (27277788 from phones and video systems) 

Agenda: Will be published Friday, December 11, 2020 

Join by video system 
Dial 1263806856@webex.com 
You can also dial 173.243.2.68 and enter your meeting number. 

 
Join by phone 
+1-408-418-9388 United States Toll 
Access code: 126 380 6856 

mailto:1263806856@webex.com


 

 
 

RESOLUTION 20-12-15-01 
CITY OF THORNE BAY 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN ALTERNATIVE ALLOCATION METHOD FOR THE FY21 SHARED FISHERIES 
BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM AND CERTIFYING THAT THIS ALLOCATION METHOD FAIRLY REPRESENTS THE 

DISTRIBUTION OF SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS OF FISHERIES BUSINESS ACTIVITY INFMA 19: SOUTHERN 
SOUTHEAST AREA 

 
WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY 21 Shared Fisheries 
Business Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development that the municipality suffered significant effects during 
calendar year 2019 from fisheries business activities; and, 

 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.060 provides for the allocation of available program funding to eligible 
municipalities located within fisheries management areas specified by the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development; and, 

 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.070 provides for the use, at the discretion of the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development, of alternative allocation methods which may be used within 
fisheries management areas if all eligible municipalities within the area FMA 19: Southern Southeast 
Area agree to use the method, and the method incorporates some measure of the relative significant 
effect of fisheries business activity on the respective municipalities in the area; and, 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Thorne Baby proposes to use an alternative allocation method for allocation of 
FY21 funding available within the FMA 19: Southern Southeast Area in agreement with all other 
municipalities in this area participating in the FY21 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Thorne Bay City Council by this resolution certifies that 
the following alternative allocation method fairly represents the distribution of significant effects during 
2019 of fisheries business activity in FMA 19, Southern Southeast: 
• All municipalities share equally 50% of allocation; all municipalities share remaining 50% on a per 

capita basis. 
• Ketchikan Gateway Borough population is reduced by the Resolution of the Cities of Ketchikan and 

Saxman 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duty constituted quorum of the City Council, for the City of Thorne Bay 
on this 15th day of December 2020. 

 
 

 
ATTEST Lucinda Edenfield, Mayor 

 
 

Teri Feibel, CMC, City Clerk/Treasurer 



1 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

MINUTES 
FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 

THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2020 

TIME:  6:30 p.m. 
 

LOCATION: TELECONFERENCE/VIDEO CONFERENCING LINE 

1) CALL TO ORDER: 
Burger called the meeting to order at 6:30p.m. 

 
2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
The audience and council stood for the pledge to the flag. 

 
3) ROLL CALL: 
Those in attendance were: Hert, Rhodes, Stram, Burger, Longbotham Edenfield 

 
4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Burger moved to approve the agenda. Edenfield seconded the motion. There was no further 
discussion. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve the agenda 
F/S: Burger/Edenfield 
YEAS: Stram, Longbotham, Burger, Edenfield, Hert & Rhodes 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 
5) MAYOR’S  REPORT: 
Mayor Burger reported on the following: 
 Stated that it was very important that people continue to practice proper hygiene, 

handwashing, keeping social distancing. 
 

6) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
a) City Administrator: 

Meetings Attended and Updates: 
 I apologize for my absence; I am in a required meeting with the Alaska State Troopers 

regarding the major vehicle accident on 9/11/20. 

 SE Alaska Conference was 9/22/20 to 9/25/20. The biggest topic of the conference was 
the announcement by Murkowski that Alaska is  going  to be  receiving  our  own 
“Roadless Act” amendment, and the legislature is  reviewing  ALL  OPTIONS  to  increase 
the resiliency and reliability of the AMHS. 

Tasks and Projects: 
 The Stryker EMS equipment order is pending a final addition.  The  EMS  Coordinator 

agreed that a Lucas V3 Automated CPR device would be a good addition to our  
capabilities. Stryker has added it to our quote. The new quote is for $77,321.44. The 



2 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

prior quote was for $56,436.98 leaving an increase of $20,884.46. I am seeking council 
approval to move forward with funding this invoice through the CARES act funding. 

 Klawock Invoice vs. Thorne Bay Invoice: The council received an email on  9/23/20 
regarding the City of Klawock refusing to pay any funds as outlined in  the EMS  MoU. 
There is currently an issue where Klawock is invoicing  us  for  the  use  of  their  solid 
waste facility while our bailer was down, and we  are invoicing them for  us  paying the 
EMS dispatchers. We  have  credited  their  invoice  against  ours  which  leaves  a balance 
of $8,919.94 due to the City  of Thorne Bay.  Klawock  is  stating they  do not  owe it  and  
is refusing to pay it. I am seeking direction from the council as to if they want to move 
forward with referring the debit to legal counsel and / or collections. 

 
Continuing Business: 
 Break in at dump: There was a break in at the Solid Waste Facility.  The suspects  were 

seen on video surveillance and we are currently working  with  the  VPSO  and  Alaska 
State Troopers to further the investigation. Would the Council want to offer a $500 
Reward for information leading to the arrest and conviction of the suspects? 

 
New Business: 
 Melody Moen – Tree removal: Melody Moen contacted me regarding  removing  some 

trees on the city easement  that  are blocking  their  viewshed  of the bay. Area 1 and part 
of Area 2 as indicated on the map below. I explained that  AP&T  was  doing  some 
trimming and removal based on the utility easements and  she  may  want  to  contact 
them to see if these trees would be removed. If they are not being  removed, and  with  
city council approval, I will work with the Moen family, and assisting with coordination  
with the US Forrest Service to  ensure  all  legalities  are  covered.  The  intended  use of 
the downed trees would be to be cut and placed on the roadside (out of the way of 
course) and provided, free of charge, to the community  for  firewood.  The  fiscal  and 
legal liability of this project will be the responsibility of the Moen Family. I am seeking 
Council comments and approval to move forward with this item. 

 



3 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

Departmental Reports: 
Water and Sewer: 
Sam and Willy are working to get the sewage treatment plant prepared and ready for the fix 
being implemented to the UV Sterilizer system. It is being lowered  almost 6 feet  to allow  for 
our surge flow. 

 
Harbors and Parks: 
We are currently recruiting for a Harbor Master. We have 3 applicants at this time. 

 
Streets and Roads: 
James Taylor is rapidly approaching his testing date for his Commercial Driver’s  License  and 
has been practicing a lot lately. 

 
Solid Waste: 
Jason Jennings has returned from his time off and is doing an amazing job at the solid waste 
facility. 

 
Library: 
Report from Library Director Laura Clark: 

 The Library is open  and  has  added  2  new  Volunteers  increasing  our  hours  open  to 
serve  our  community.  Many  thanks  to  our  new  volunteers.  We   are   currently 
ordering, and new items are now hitting the  shelves.  Come  in  for  new  middle  school 
aged books and all kinds of new movies. Many of our movies are now kept behind the 
scenes, please ask and we happily share the new titles with you. 

 Live Homework Help is  back  online,  and  we  have  new  tools  and  a  webinar  to  help  
high schoolers learn about the ways to pay for college. 

 Come on in, we are here to help! 
Special Projects: 

 
b) City Clerk Report: 

Clerk Teri Feibel provided the following report: 
 

 MAYORAL ELECTION NOVEMBER 3RD 
Those interested can complete a declaration of candidacy form with the City Clerk 
beginning October 13 and ends at 12pm October 16th 
Absentee voting will begin on October 20th 

 NOTICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FOR THORNE BAY 
October 22nd 6pm Webex 
October 24th 2pm Fire Hall 

“The goals of the Alaska Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) are to 
provide financial resources to Alaskan communities for public facilities and planning 
activities which address issues detrimental to  the  health  and  safety  of  local  residents  
and to reduce the costs of essential community services. The program  may  also  fund 
Special Economic Development activities which result in the creation of jobs for low- and 
moderate-income persons. CDBG competitive grants are single-purpose project grants; 



4 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

maximum of $850,000 per community. There are three basic funding categories: 
community development, planning and Special Economic Development. CDBG programs 
utilize the resources of the Community Development Block Grant program funded by the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Approximately $2 million is 
available for competitive grants for the Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 20 grant cycle.” 

 
 NEO TRAINING: 

Newly Elected Officials in Brief… This session will be conducted via Zoom, including 
with teleconference option. All materials will be sent ahead of time 

 
 AMBULANCE PURCHASES: 

Ambulances were purchased and are on their way from Seattle. Total for both 
ambulances was $114,800.00 

 
 IFA UPDATED SAILINGS 

Thank You to All of You ‘Holding Off’ to book your travel until those with critical 
transportation needs were met! Booking is now OPEN to Everyone!! 
ALL persons wanting to travel between Ketchikan & Hollis ports during October and 
enjoy the 3-hour ferry ride on the M/V Lituya! We have space for  WALK-ON 
PASSENGERS on all October Lituya Sail Days, and we still have space for VEHICLES on 
quite a few sailings! Call 866-308-4848 or go www.interislandferry.com to book your 
trip; for your convenience, Online Booking is now available for Lituya sailings as well! 
Thank You again to AMHS (M/V Lituya) for covering 2 SAILINGS per WEEK in OCTOBER 
2020 for IFA (M/V Stikine)! 
AMHS Passenger Screening Form & Face Covering Requirements: 
In an effort to continue to keep passengers & crews safe, we must abide by AMHS COVID 
protocols. You must give your completed AMHS Passenger Screening  Form  to purser 
before boarding their vessel. AMHS also requires that all passengers (and crew)  over  2 
years old wear a face covering while on vessel unless you are in your vehicle or in a 
designated eating or smoking area. 

 

 CITY OF THORNE BAY REPORT 
Overall plan for expenditures from CARES: 
The Thorne Bay City Council approved changes in the CARES spending plan outlined 
below: 

EMS – $362,965 

Personnel - $32,465 -costs for new coordinator position and increased stipends for 
dispatch and EMT’s through Dec. 30, 2020. (Starting Jan 1, the city’s general fund 
budget will assume these costs.) Coordinator position salary and benefits  budgeted 
for 6 months. Reduce by 2 months (July and Aug.)- savings of $11,680. 

 
Medical Expenses – $120,500 restock critical supplies to ensure preparedness for any 
future surge of the pandemic. 

Equipment – $190,000 Gurneys, ambulances + shipping 

http://www.interislandferry.com/


5 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

Travel and Training – $15,000 expenses to increase the skills of EMS workers, both 
paid and un-paid. 

Airlift Northwest - $5,000 

Employee wages and grant management – $61,672 
Money to cover employee expenses for work done specifically to alleviate and 
diminish the pandemic. Grant management dollars, $24,000, were reduced to 
$10,000 as it is anticipated the number of hours first allotted won’t be necessary. 

Public Health – $6,222 cleaning supplies, sanitizer stations, re-stock MMRS tent 

Grants to small businesses and non-profits - $35,500. 
In the 1st round, the city received 11 applications, so another round was advertised 
and four more were received. 
Utility and Moorage Relief to residents –$12,500 
The city mailed applications to residents and received few returns. A 2nd round was 
advertised with an Aug. 21 deadline and 4 more applications were received, all of 
which were funded. 

Repair and Expand Davidson Landing Facility (Thorne Bay’s south side) - $70,800 
Davidson Landing will be upgraded as an ‘incident command center’ for  south Thorne 
Bay 

Communications – $24,000 New radios will be purchased to replace old, outdated 
ones. Tablets will be purchased for council members who must attend meetings 
virtually. 

Food Bank mileage reimbursement for deliveries - $200 
Amount of grant $573,859.52 

 
7) PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Patrick Tierney Commented on the Following: 
 Parking limitations.  Encouraged  the council  to review  the plan for  parking in Thorne 

Bay and addressing parking all over Thorne Bay. The proposed limitation of parking on 
Rainy Lane would prohibit people who visit businesses to park. 

 Encouraged the council to take the time, look into the history, look into the facts, look 
into the realism of what Thorne Bay  has available  for parking in town,  and what we 
need to deal with going forward. 

 Offered to help work on this issue, do and see what I can do to help. 

8) COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Eric Rhodes commented on the following: 
 Encouraged the public to participate  in  the  Community  Development  Block  Grant 

Public Hearings. Rhodes explained the importance of having public involvement  during 
the application process. 

 Three ways the public can participate and have their voice heard in the CDBG; 
1. Public Hearing October 22ND, via WebEx at 6pm, 
2. Public Hearing October 24th at 2pm in person at the at the Fire Hall across from 

City Hall, or 
3. Complete the Survey that has been posted around town, on the City website 

and available at City Hall. 
 Explained that the CDBG Grants are based on our score of poverty. It's incredibly 



6 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

important that we take advantage of the opportunity as we see the Federal and State 
funding being dried up in some areas, this is still accessible to us. 

Burger commented on the following: 
 The trees that are being requested for trimming or removal are not on private 

property and the City should be ablet to handle internally. 

Hert commented on the following: 
 Not in favor of removing trees to help someone’s view of the bay. Would agree to trim 

trees, but not to remove them. 

Stram commented on the following: 
 Commented that if the trees were on the persons property, they could have them 

removed. 
 

9) CONSENT AGENDA: 
a) MINUTES: 

a) Minutes for the September 1, 2020, Special City Council Meeting, discussion and 
action item: 

b) Minutes for the September 15, 2020, Regular City Council Meeting, discussion and 
action item: 

Burger moved to approve the minutes of the September 1st and 15th, City Council Meetings. 
Hert seconded the motion. There was no further discussion. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve the minutes of the September 1st and 15th, City Council 

Meetings 
F/S: Burger/Hert 
YEAS: Stram, Longbotham, Burger, Edenfield, Hert & Rhodes 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 

10) NEW BUSINESS: 
a) Certifying the Results of the 2020 Regular Municipal Election, discussion action item: 

Burger moved to certify the results of the October 6, 2020. Edenfield seconded the motion. 
Clerk Feibel read the Election Results for the record. 

 
CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION 
As  confirmed  by the  Thorne  Bay  City  Council,  upon  completion  of the  final  canvass  of ballots  on the 
9th day of October 2020, final election results are: 

 
Council Seat C: (3-Year Term) 
Thom Cunningham – 84 votes 
Gregory Kerkof – 114 votes 
Gregory Kerkof is hereby elected to Council Seat C, with a vote of 114 

 
 

Council Seat E: (3-Year Term) 
Jon Stram – 105 
Kim Redmond – 104 
Jon Stram (incumbent) is hereby elected to Council Seat E, with a vote of 105 



7 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

Council Seat G: ( 1-Year Term) 
Wes Craske – 78 
DeAnn Minnillo – 59 
Robert Hartwell – 69 
Wes Craske is hereby elected to Council Seat G, with a vote of 78 

 
 

MOTION: Move to certify the results of the October 6, 2020, Regular Municipal Election. 
F/S: Burger/Edenfield 
YEAS: Stram, Longbotham, Burger, Edenfield, Hert & Rhodes 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 

b) Renewal of SISD Lease renewal for use of City Tidelands for placement and operations 
of a restaurant, discussion and action item: 

Burger moved to approve SISD Lease Renewal.  Edenfield  seconded  the motion.  Hert 
clarification of the sublease  of  AK49 through  the  school.  Hert  requested  clarification 
regarding AK49 and the sublease with the School. Clerk stated it was the School who paid the 
monthly lease of the City and AK49 had the sublease with the  School for  operating  and they 
paid the school. Stram expressed  his  appreciated  to  AK-49 for  their  operation  days  and 
hours. Their  pizza is excellent  along with the rest of  their food  and services.  Burger  agreed 
that they are doing great, especially with increased limitations in Thorne Bay with COVID. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve SISD Lease Renewal 
F/S: Burger/Edenfield 
YEAS: Stram, Longbotham, Burger, Edenfield, Hert, Rhodes 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

c) Appointing Election Judges for the November 3rd, 2020 Mayoral Election, discussion 
and action item: 

Burger moved to appoint Cherish Carter, Sue Edson, Laura Jennings, Monica  Douglas,  Abby 
Cook and Serena Williams as Election Judges for  the November  3rd, 2020, Mayoral  Election. 
Hert seconded the motion. City Clerk Feibel stated that there would be three election judges 
placed at each location for voting. Polls will be open at City Hall and  Absentee  Voting at 
Davidson Landing. There was no further discussion. 

MOTION: Move to appoint Cherish Carter, Sue Edson, Laura Jennings, Monica 
Douglass, Abby Cook, Serena Williams as election officials for the November 3rd, 
2020, Mayoral Election 

F/S: Burger/Hert 
YEAS: Stram, Longbotham, Burger, Edenfield, Hert & Rhodes 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 

11) ORDINANCE FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 
a) Ordinance  20-10-06-01 amending  Title  2  – Administration and  Personnel,  Chapter 

2.56, City Property, Amending 190 Lands Available for Leasing- Classification of Lands, 
discussion and action item: 



8 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

Burger moved to approve Ordinance  20-10-06-01.  Rhodes seconded  the motion.  The  City 
Clerk explained that the Ordinance was a Public Hearing, and  the Public is invited  to comment 
on the Ordinance. Clerk explained that the amendment would add the term lease of up to 
99-years for Tideland Leases. Even though the tideland lease may be up to 99-years, does not 
meant that all tideland leases would be that long. 
Hert stated that she wanted to be sure that if the property changes owners, that the lease is re-
evaluated and renegotiated. Clerk confirmed that was true. 

 

MOTION: Move to approve Ordinance 20-10-06-01 
F/S: Burger/Rhodes 
YEAS: Stram, Longbotham, Burger, Edenfield, Hert, Rhodes 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 

12) EXPENDITURES EXCEEDING $2,000.00: 
a) Expense of $77,321.44 to Stryker for EMS Supplies discussion and action item: 

Burger moved to approve the expense of $77,321.44 to Stryker for EMS Supplies.  
Burger moved to approve the expense of $77,321.44 to Stryker for EMS Supplies. Stram 
seconded the motion. Hert confirmed that it was only for medical supplies and not 
ambulances. There was further discussion. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve the expense of $77,321.44 to Stryker for EMS Supplies 
F/S: Burger/Stram 
YEAS: Stram, Longbotham, Burger, Edenfield, Hert & Rhodes 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 

13) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 
McDonald commented on the following: 
 Confirmed that the Clerk read his comments regarding the Ferry. 

Patrick Tierney commented on the following: 
 Pruning rather than removing trees as mentioned on SOUTH TNB 

 
14) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 

 
Longbotham commented on the following: 
 Expressed appreciation to the candidates that ran for office and looking forward to 

working with the new council. 

Hert commented on the following: 
 Regarding the No Parking Issues – Rainy Lane needs to have something done,  I  travel a 

lot and that corner there to Shoreline Drive is a very dangerous corner. 
 There is not enough room on Rainy Lane for a two-lane road and in favor or a one-way 

road. 



9 of 9 | P a g e s M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 2 , 2 0 2 0   

Rhodes commented on the following: 
 Regarding the reward for the stolen items,  I  don’t believe  the council  needs  to vote on 

a reward and it could be administrative decision. 
 Parking needs to be reviewed carefully. We do not want to jeopardize someone’s 

business 

Burger commented on the following: 
 Suggested a time limited parking  vs no parking and  on corners,  need  to be able to see 

if people are coming or going 

Stram commented on the following: 
 Regarding Parking, the City needs to be generous for long-time residents. We cannot 

make more land. Work with residents on this. 
 Appreciated those who worked on the election and thanked Kim Redmond for running 

such a good election. Loved good spirits around town. 

Hert commented on the following: 
 Congratulations to all who ran for Council. Encourage that everyone out there who is 

interested, even if you do not win, do not stop being  involved.  There are other 
elections. Continue to be active. 

 

15) ADJOURNMENT: 
Burger adjourned the meeting at 7:37pm 

 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Lucinda  Edenfield, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
Teri Feibel, CMC 



1 of 5 | P a g e s  M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 9 , 2 0 2 0 , C i t y C o u n c i l M e e t i n g  

MINUTES 
FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2020 
TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

1) CALL TO ORDER: 
Burger called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
Council and audience stood for the pledge to the flag. 

3) OATH OF OFFICE 
a) Greg Kerkof, Seat C 
b) Jon Stram, Seat E 
c) Wes Craske, Seat G. 

The newly elected officers were sworn in and read the Oath of Office. 
 

4) ROLL CALL: 
Burger, Edenfield, Rhodes, Stram, Craske, Kerkof. Longbotham joined at 6:07 p.m. 

 

5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Move to approve the agenda. Edenfield seconded the motion. There was no further discussion. 

MOTION: Move to approve the agenda 
F/S: Burger/Edenfield 
YEAS: Burger, Edenfield, Rhodes, Stram, Craske & Kerkof 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 

6) MAYOR’S REPORT: 
Mayor Burger commented on the following: 

• Welcome to the three new councilmembers 
• COVID-19 Virus is still out there and so I encourage everyone to continue social distancing, 

practicing proper hygiene and stay home if you are sick. 

7) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
a) City Administrator: 
• The City has a reward out in the amount of $1,000.00 for information leading to an 

arrest and conviction of the thieves that broke into the Solid Waste site and stole tools 
along with other items. 

b) City Clerk Report: 
• November 3rd, 2020, Mayoral Election. Polls will be at City Hall Council Chambers and 

Absentee Voting will be available at City Hall October 20-November 2nd and then again 
on November 3rd at Davidson Landing. Polls open at 7am and close at 8pm. 

• Newly Elected Officials Training will be held via Zoom beginning November 9th and end the 
10th. 



2 of 5 | P a g e s  M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 9 , 2 0 2 0 , C i t y C o u n c i l M e e t i n g  

• Read the resignation letter of Councilman Roger Longbotham: 
“Dear City Council Members and Citizens of Thorne Bay, 
I Roger Longbotham am hereby submitting my letter of resignation to be effective October 
23rd, 2020 at 12:00PM. The reason for my resignation is I am outside the city of Thorne Bay 
taking care of my wife's elderly parents. Both are in there middle to upper 80's and are in 2 
different locations. With them being married for over 68 years, the separation is difficult at 
best. We are doing everything we can for them to spend time together as often as possible. 
With the pandemic and travel restrictions in force, travel back and forth to and from Thorne 
Bay is very difficult. I don't want to put my family at risk by the extensive travel and 
extending myself to a higher exposure risk of the COVID 19. 
Our stay is going to be extended and I do not want to hold the seat in my absents from the 
city. It is with a heavy heart to submit this letter of resignation; however, I have been 
considering this for a long time. It has been my pleasure to serve the citizens of Thorne Bay. 
Sincerely, Roger Longbotham, Councilman Seat A” 

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Sean Kaer commented on the following: 

• Thanked Roger Longbotham for his time in office. 
• Inquired about the following topics: 

o Will City Council meetings be done on Monday’s from here on out? 
o Why did absentee voting at Davidson Landing start so late for October 6th Election? 

• How does someone go about applying to be on the Council? 

9) COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Eric Rhodes commented on the following: 

• Appreciates Councilman Longbotham for honoring the Code on absences and thanked him 
for his time in office. 

Wes Craske commented on the following: 
• Requested that the City get the fire truck out of the fire hall at Davidson Landing prior to 

Election Day, November 3rd, 2020 
• Requested also that the City move the Red Connex so there can be a Christmas Tree put up 

there. 
• Explained that he was looking to have a Christmas tree decoration contest between both 

sides of the Bay and hoped it would be a fun event that would help join the community 
together. There will be winners and prizes for those who participate. 

• Commented that he wanted to keep the joining of the community together and end the 
negativity that has gone on for so long. 

 

Longbotham commented on the following: 
• Heavy heart that he submits his resignation. 

Craske commented on the following: 
• Expressed condolences to Councilman Longbotham for what his family was going through. 
• Thanked Councilman Longbotham for his service on the City Council. 

Jon Stram commented on the following: 
• Encouraged everyone to remember to get out and vote. 



3 of 5 | P a g e s  M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 9 , 2 0 2 0 , C i t y C o u n c i l M e e t i n g  

10) NEW BUSINESS: 
a) Vacancy of a City Council Seat due to the physical absence from the city for a 

ninety-day period, without being excused by council, as required in Thorne Bay for 
longer than 90 days as per Thorne Bay Municipal Code 2.04.100, discussion and 
action item: 

Burger moved to accept vacancy of council seat A due to physical absence. Kerkof 
seconded the motion. Edenfield requested clarification on the vacancy? Burger stated it 
would be effective immediately (October 19, 2020). Kerkof stated that the office was 
technically vacated when Councilman Longbotham had been absent longer than the 90 
days. Rhodes commented that he agreed with the code but notes that when it was 
McDonald that was absent there were different views. Rhodes stated he would respect 
the resignation date effective October 23rd. Craske commented that he too would agree 
with the 23rd, there would be no negative effect. 
Kerkof disagreed and added that by accepting the resignation date of the 23rd would 
allow Longbotham to vote on Vice Mayor. 
Craske stated that in efforts to keep peace he was taking the stand to accept the 
resignation of Councilmember Longbotham effective October 23rd. 
Stram stated that Longbotham participated in every meeting since his absence. 
Kerkof stated he would agree to accept the resignation effective the 23rd if Longbotham 
would recuse himself from the Vice Mayor vote. There was further discussion. 

 
MOTION: Move to declare council seat A vacant under Municipal Code 2.01.100 
F/S: Burger/Edenfield 
YEAS: Burger, Edenfield, & Kerkof 
NAYS: Longbotham, Rhodes, Stram & Craske 
STATUS: Motion Failed. 

 
b) Appointment of Vice Mayor of the City of Thorne Bay, discussion and action item: 

Edenfield nominated Lee Burger as Vice Mayor. Rhodes nominated Jon Stram as Vice 
Mayor. 
Edenfield stated that she felt Burger was best suited for the Vice Mayor because Lee has 
been on the council for many years and it was her opinion that a councilmember should 
serve for at least one year on the Council before serving either as Mayor or Vice Mayor. 
The Clerk did a roll call for vote of the Mayor between Burger and Stram. 

 
Edenfield – Burger Rhodes – Stram 
Burger – Burger Stram – Stram 
Kerkof – Burger Craske – Stram 

Longbotham – Stram 
 

With a vote of 4/3, Jon Stram was appointed as the Vice Mayor for a term of one year. 



4 of 5 | P a g e s  M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 9 , 2 0 2 0 , C i t y C o u n c i l M e e t i n g  

c) Amending the SISD Lease of City Tideland Lease to permit reduced rental rate for 
the months of November 2020 through May 31, 2021, discussion and action 
item: 

Burger moved to approve the amended lease reducing the rate to 150 per month for November 
through May 31, 2020. Stram seconded the motion. Burger stated the restaurant has done 
everything they could to remain open during the times of COVID. Stram expressed thanks to AK-49 
for all they do for the community and commented that they have done a wonderful job. 
Edenfield and Rhodes concurred with the comments from Stram. 

 
MOTION: Moved to approve the amended lease reducing the rate to 150 per month for 

November through May 31st, 2021 
F/S: Burger/Stram 
YEAS: Burger, Edenfield, Longbotham, Rhodes, Stram, Kerkof & Craske 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 
d) Resolution 20-10-19-01, amending authorized bank account signers for the City 

of Thorne Bay’s First Bank and Tongass Federal Credit Union accounts, 
discussion, and action item: 

This item was removed from the agenda. Clerk placed on the agenda prematurely as 
there will be a new Mayor elected in November. 

 
11) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Thom Cunningham commented on the following: 

• Congrats to the City Councilmembers. 
 

Brenda McDonald commented on the following: 
• Would like to have the code clarified on the 90 absence. It was confusing and is confusing 

to the public. 
 

Sean Kaer commented on the following: 
• Agreed that the 90 days needs clarified. 
• Congrats to all new councilmembers 

 
12) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 
Rhodes commented on the following: 

• Community Development Block Grant opportunity. Informed the council and public that 
there would be public meetings held on Thursday, October 22nd at 6pm via WebEx and 
again on Saturday, October 24th at the Town side Fire Hall beginning at 2pm. 

 
Longbotham commented on the following: 

• Expressed his support for Eric Rhodes as Mayor 



5 of 5 | P a g e s  M i n u t e s o f O c t o b e r 1 9 , 2 0 2 0 , C i t y C o u n c i l M e e t i n g  

Craske commented on the following: 
• Encouraged community growth and wellbeing. Commented that he wanted to start seeing 

positive coming from the community and less negative. 
 

Stram commented on the following: 
• Agreed with Councilman Craske and stated he would like to see more positivity. Continued 

that he loved this community and that he wanted to function solely as peace maker in his 
position as the Vice Mayor for the next year. 

• Regardless to who is elected as Mayor, it will be a good choice and he is happy to work 
alongside whomever is elected as Mayor. 

 
Rhodes commented on the following: 

• Echoed both Wes and Jon’s comment. 
 
 

13) ADJOURNMENT: 
Burger adjourned the meeting at 7:13p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lucinda Edenfield, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 

Teri Feibel, CMC 



1 of 7 | P a g e s Minutes November 17, 2020  

MINUTES 
FOR THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
TIME: 6:30 p.m. 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER: 

Edenfield called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
The audience and council stood for the pledge to the flag. 

 
3) OATH OF OFFICE: 
Mayor Oath of Office - Cindy Edenfield pledged the Oath of Office 
Seat A - Thom Cunningham pledged the Oath of Office 

4) ROLL CALL: 
Those in attendance were: Edenfield, Burger, Kerkof, Rhodes, Craske & Cunningham 
Cunningham joined the meeting at 6:35 p.m. 

 

5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Edenfield Move to approve the agenda. Craske seconded the motion. There was no further 
discussion. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve the agenda 
F/S: Edenfield/Craske 
YEAS: Burger, Rhodes, Edenfield, Kerkof, Craske 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 
(Cunningham was not in attendance during the approval of the agenda) 

 
6) MAYOR’S REPORT: 
Mayor Edenfield provided the following report: 
 Thanked the Community for their confidence in her and voting her into office of Mayor 
 Encouraged the public to continue following the Governors Mandates. Continue Social 

Distancing, Follow proper hygiene. Encourage people to wear your mask while in the 
public and visiting any of the business. 

 
7) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 

a) City Administrator Les Carter reported on the following: 
 Following Governors Mandate, the City has closed the doors to the City offices and library. 

City Hall is still open for business at the City through email, phone, or the mail drop 
through the door 



2 of 7 | P a g e s Minutes November 17, 2020  

 Working with Councilmembers Craske and Cunningham on the CDBG grant for a new fire 
hall at Davidson Landing. 

 The City has a problem with Otters at the Harbor. 
 Road conditions are in the best shape that they will be before the snow hits. City 

Employees did get Steep Road worked on and the residents are thankful. 
 OVK and City Staff are working on the Kasaan and Subdivision Roads. 
 Fish Cleaning station moved for the winter. When we put back in place it will be moved so 

not to interfere with float plane docking 
 

b) City Clerk Report: 
 Received the second round of CARES funding in the amount of $109,259.25. 
 U.S. Senators Lisa Murkowski (R-AK) and Maggie Hassan (D-NH) introduced 

legislation that extends the period during which States, Indian 
Tribes, territories, and local governments may use Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) 
payments, allocated under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
(CARES) Act. If enacted, this bipartisan legislation will allow the relief funds to be 
used until September 30, 2021, rather than the original deadline of the end of this 
year, December 30, 2020. 

 Finance Report: 

 
Name 

Available 
Balance 

QUICKBOOKS 
INCOME/EXPENSE 

 
$ 38,983.34 

Total Income $1,108,364.82 
Total Expense $1,069,381.48 
Net Income $ 38,983.34 

  

WELLS FARGO 
INVESTMENTS 
BALANCE: 

 
$1,035,192 

Mutual Funds $620,504.54 
Fixed Income $303,213.00 
Cash/Cash Alternatives $111,474.32 

  

FIRST BANK 
CHECKING 

$142,546.50 

First Bank Checking $142,546.50 
  

TONGASS FEDERAL 
CHECKING 

 
599,083.23 

HEALTH PREMIUM $35,056.61 

https://wfadvisors.wellsfargo.com/BW/brokoverview.t.do?_x=NOBF12U8ON2RO2804C0METSZ57ZGSOG7.39A2UBROU1L907RVWUT5KMC50FK005EO
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/0
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/FundsOnHold?Suffix=0&SeeAccount=False


3 of 7 | P a g e s Minutes November 17, 2020  

OCCUPANCY GEN. $6,299.91 

40% SALES TAX $113,047.69 

OCC TAX EMS/FIR $13,500.54 

OCC TAX TOURISM $9,211.11 

OCC TAX PARKS $9,554.98 

OCC TAX HARBOR $20,183.67 

WATER UTL R&R $16,292.94 

SEWER UTL R&R $14,649.84 

SOLID WASTE R&R $13,983.08 

CHECKING $169,238.12 

60% SALES TAX $98,069.77 

HARBOR $79,994.97 

TOTAL CASH BALANCE $1,776,821.73 
 

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Patrick Tierney commented on the following: 
Re: Parking on Rainy Lane 
 The first comment I submitted shouldn’t be used for support of any one idea, but for 

only history. Sheet two includes alternatives that I can support. 
 Appreciate the notice provided for the public hearing. 

Sherri Becker, SISD, commented on the following: 
 Thanked the Administrator for clarifying the section of Rainy Lane that was being 

considered for the one way. SISD was unaware of that change. 
 

9) COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Wes Craske commented on the following: 
 Eric, Thom, Les and I met on Saturday for the CDBG Grant and hashed out a plan for what 

we are doing down there. I am pleased with the progress we are making. 

10) PUBLIC HEARING: 
a) Public Hearing to consider a change in street use and parking on Rainy Lane. 

The City has requested the public submit your comments and suggestions for Rainy Lane to 
the City Clerk by Tuesday, November 17th, 4pm. 

Some of the options to be considered are as follows: 
i) One Way road with LIMITED PARKING 
ii) One Way road with NO  PARKING 
iii) Two Way road with NO PARKING 

https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/1
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/2
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/3
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/4
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/5
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/6
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/7
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/8
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/9
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/40
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/FundsOnHold?Suffix=40&SeeAccount=False
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/70
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/FundsOnHold?Suffix=70&SeeAccount=False
https://www.itsme247.com/928/MyAccounts/ShareDetails/71


4 of 7 | P a g e s Minutes November 17, 2020  

Public Hearing Comments: 

 Church of Thorne Bay 

In regard to the public hearing on Rainy Lane we are not aware of any problems with the current 
situation and not sure why leaving the road as is not on the list of options to at least consider. The 
Church of Thorne Bay wishes to remain neutral hoping that the other homeowners on Rainy Lane 
would be able to choose what is best for their neighborhood. 

 
 Cirstyn Ellison, 924 Rainy Lane 

I would like to see a one-way street with limited parking (24-48 hours) to permit additional parking 
when needed for family, friends or overflow parking. 

Rainy Lane is a very narrow street and most houses only have room for one vehicle per residence. 
For safety reasons I fully support Rainy Lane becoming a one-way street. I ask that you consider 
short term parking in designated areas of the pull-outs. 

 
 Willie Austin 401 Rainy Lane 

Two-way with no parking. 

 
 Branzon Anania, Maintenance Director for SISD 

Speaking from SISD's maintenance department. Making the road in front of the district’s 
maintenance shop one way would greatly increase the traffic around Rainy Lane. Our buses 
are stored at 409 Rainy Lane and we are able to move them in and out with li ttle impact 
around the loop. Making this portion of Rainy Lane one way would force the district to use 
the loop with buses, dump trucks, trucks with trailers. and delivery vehicles currently do 
not drive around the loop at all. We will work with the city to accommodate any needed 
changes but would like to also make the city aware of the amount and size of traffic moving 
around the Rainy Lane loop if forced into a one-way situation. 
Thank you. 

 
 Sue Edson, 412 Rainy Lane 

Two-way with no parking. 

 
 Rob Williams, 930 Rainy Lane 

One-way road with limited parking. However, my freight deliveries may go against the 1-way 
direction once a week. 

For Parking vehicles will be in front of the store for approx. 10 min 

For other vehicles as long as they are running and off asphalt 



5 of 7 | P a g e s Minutes November 17, 2020  

 Patrick Tierney, 920 Rainy Lane 
Written Response to Public Hearing, November 17. 2020, Meeting Agenda Item 10), a), Public 
Hearing to Consider a Change in Street Use and Parking on Rainy Lane 

Submitted by Patrick J Tierney, Co-Owner, Lot 15, Block 7 

Sheet 2, Alternatives in Order of Preference and Support 

Dear City Council, 
After canvasing the neighborhood, I find that there is little, if any support for one-way street 
designations. One-way streets will cause extended travel routes, confusion and may limit access 
during emergencies. 

Options to consider listed by level of support: 

1) No Action. Do nothing other than efforts to maintain safe passage along the street. 
2) Limited or no parking in areas with less than 24 feet useable area within the ROW. Post or 

otherwise mark areas where there is less than 24 feet of useable right-of-way as no 
parking. Leave the rest of the street as open parking with NO LIMITS other than the 
restrictions on abandoned or inoperative vehicles, large vehicles, boats and other 
prohibited parking. 

We seem to be addressing this issue due to a certain few residents who abuse parking privileges 
and cause congestion. Why should the rest of us suffer because of the sins of the few? 

The data presented in my first set of comments bears out the facts that issues with parking are 
occurring where the street/useable ROW is narrowest. 

 
Use the no parking near fire hydrants and intersections to the advantage. Combined with a very 
few well-placed and descriptive signs, the situation could be resolved simply. 

A few other suggestions for signs: 
1) Caution Narrow Street 
2) Caution One Lane Road 
3) Caution Children At Play 
4) No Parking This Side of Street (with arrow) 
5) No Parking Either Side of Street (with arrow) 

I do not support one-way street designation nor limitations on parking where there is 24 feet or 
more useable ROW available. 
Thank you 

 

11) NEW BUSINESS: 
a) Amending the Short-term Rental Agreement with Papac Logging, increasing the 

rented area from 1.5 acres to 2 acres, discussion and action item: 
Edenfield moved to discuss. Craske seconded the motion. Discussion included adding the 
requirement of a porta poddy being available onsite for workers to use. Administrator Carter 
stated he would contact PAPAC to discuss options available and then bring the agreement back to 
the Council for consideration with the added requirement. 



6 of 7 | P a g e s Minutes November 17, 2020  

b) Organization of Comprehensive Development Action Plan Committee, discussion and 
action item: (Thorne Bay Comprehensive Plan 2035, projecting out 15-years of goals and 
objectives for the community and developing a “roadmap” to those goals)  

  

Rhodes stated that he had requested this item be placed on the agenda for discussion to update 
the last plan which was done in 2008. Rhodes suggested the City Contact the School 
Superintendent to discuss involving the students in development of the plan. There was further 
discussion. Edenfield stated that it was the duty of the Planning Commission to develop and 
review the Comprehensive Plan annually. Edenfield suggested that the Planning Commission 
review the document and get a committee together to update it. There was further discussion. 

 
12) ORDINANCE FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 

a) Ordinance 20-11-17-01, a non-code ordinance amending the long-term 20-year lease of 
City Property between the City of Thorne Bay and GVA Corporation, aka Tackle Shack, to 
a ninety-nine-year tideland lease, discussion and action item: 

Edenfield move to approve Ordinance 20-11-17-01. Burger seconded the motion. 
Rhodes confirmed for the record that the lease was non-transferrable. Cunningham inquired why 
they wanted a 99-year lease instead of a 50-year lease. Clerk Feibel commented that it would be 
to secure their investment. There was further discussion. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve Ordinance 20-11-17-01 
F/S: Edenfield/Burger 
YEAS: Burger, Rhodes, Edenfield, Kerkof, Cunningham & Craske 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed. 

 

13) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Pat Tierney commented on the following: 
 Check with the Corps of Engineer on the use of the tideland 
 Offered to work with the City on the Rainy Lane issue and can be quite impartial when the 

public is involved 
 

Sherri Becker 
 Students would love to work with the City on a plan. Do what we can as soon as possible. 

 
 

14) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 
Eric Rhodes commented on the following: 
 No action plus signage is what is most favored 

 
Thom Cunningham commented on the following: 
 If made one way, where would the one way begin? 



7 of 7 | P a g e s Minutes November 17, 2020  

15) ADJOURNMENT: 
Edenfield adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Lucinda Edenfield, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Teri Feibel, CMC 



1 of 3 | P ag e s M i n u t e s D e c e m b e r 1 , 2 0 2 0  

MINUTES 
FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 

THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER  1, 2020 

TIME: 6:  30 p.m. 
LOCATION: TELECONFERENCE/VIDEO CONFERENCING LINE 

 
1) CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Edenfield called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
The council and audience pledged to the flag. 

 
3) ROLL CALL: 

Those in attendance were: 
Edenfield, Burger, Rhodes, Craske, Kerkof, & Cunningham 
Stram was excused 

 
4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

Edenfield moved to approve the agenda. Burger seconded the motion. There was no further 
discussion. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve the agenda 
F/S: Edenfield/Burger 
YEAS: Edenfield, Burger, Rhodes, Craske, Kerkof & Cunningham 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed 

 
5) MAYOR’S REPORT: 

Mayor Edenfield commented on the following: 
• NO ACTIVE COVID 
• Encouraged the public to continue practicing social distancing and proper hygiene. 

 
6) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 

a) City Administrator: 
Administrator Commented on the following: 

• South TNB road had an area that had clogged culvert and has been repaired. Encouraged 
people to drive slowly on the road. 

• Community Development Block Grant has been mailed. Watched it get on the Plain and 
is on its way to Juneau. 



2 of 3 | P ag e s M i n u t e s D e c e m b e r 1 , 2 0 2 0  

b) City Clerk Report: 

Clerk Feibel commented on the following: 
 Budget vs. Actual Profit and Loss report will be provided  to the City Council  and posted  

on the City’s Website. 
 

7) PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
There were no public comments. 

 
8) COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Thom Cunning commented on the following: 
 Inquired if we were still in MOU with OVK, the road could use the grader and is in bad 

shape. 
 

Burger commented on the following: 
 Appreciated Les getting the CDBG grant out. That was one of the Council’s largest items 

wanted of the Administrator. 
 

Eric Rhodes commented on the following: 
 Kudos to Les for getting the grant out. 

 
9) NEW BUSINESS: 

a) Resolution 20-12-01-01, amending city council meeting policies and procedures, 
discussion and action item: 

Edenfield moved to approve Resolution 20-12-01-01. Kerkof seconded the motion. Rhodes 
stated that he would not favor the initial public comments to only agenda items  when  you 
are also allowing the public to comment again under the agenda item  itself.  Craske stated 
that he agreed with Rhodes and that the initial comment period should be left open for a 
number of reasons. Kerkof stated that he proposed the amendment because historically 
people will attend meetings to make a comment and then  leave without staying for the rest 
of the meeting. There was further discussion. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve Resolution 20-12-01-01 
F/S: Edenfield/Kerkof 

Rhodes moved to table Resolution 20-12-01-01. Craske seconded the motion. 

MOTION: Move to table Resolution 20-12-01-01 
F/S: Rhodes / Craske 
YEAS: Edenfield, Burger, Rhodes, Craske, Kerkof & Cunningham 
NAYS: None 
STATUS: Motion Passed 



3 of 3 | P ag e s M i n u t e s D e c e m b e r 1 , 2 0 2 0  

10) ORDINANCE FOR INTRODUCTION: None 
 

11) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 No public comments 

12) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 

Kerkof commented on the following: 
 Town Hall Meetings a couple of times a year 

Craske commented on the following: 
 Agreed with town hall 
 Spoke with Tim Lacour from DOT about a sign at the Goose Creek Turn-Off 
 Next week will be gathering a Christmas Tree for Davidson Landing 

Rhodes commented on the following: 
 100% on board with Kerkof’s comment on a Town Hall 

Cunningham commented on the following: 
 Agreed with Town Hall 
 Thank you to Les for-Community Development Block Grant 

Kerkof commented on the following: 
 Regarding South TNB Roads and the State’s ownership and lack of maintenance, 

suggested that the City encourage the State deeding the roads over to the City so the 
City could pursue grants to help in approvements. 

Craske commented on the following: 
 The City owns the roads. 

Rhodes commented on the following: 
 DNR has communicated to us that they own roads, but the City is responsible for 

maintenance of the 

Cunningham commented  on the following: 
 Agree that if the City of Thorne Bay, City of Kasaan and Organized Village of Kasaan act 

as one, we could put more pressure on the State to turn over or do something with the 
Southside Roads. 

 
13) ADJOURNMENT: 

Mayor Edenfield adjourned the meeting at 7:11 p.m. 
 
 

_____   
ATTEST: Lucinda Edenfield, Mayor 

 
 

_____  _ 
Teri Feibel, CMC 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

ORDINANCE ______________ 
 CITY OF THORNE BAY 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, - AMENDING 

TITLE 1-GENERAL PROVISIONS; SECTION 1.16.035-MINOR OFFENSE FINE SCHEDULE, AMENDING 
THE MINOR OFFENSE FINE SCHEDULE FROM “PER OFFENCE” TO A “GRADUATED” FINE SCHEDULE 

FOR MINOR OFFENSE VIOLATIONS OF THE THORNE BAY MUNICIPAL CODE 
PROVISIONS ADOPTION BY REFERENCE, SUBSECTION (B)(2) OPERATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 
 
 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature, the chapter 
and section hereby amended shall be added to the Thorne Bay Municipal Code. 

 
Section 2.  Severability.  If any provisions of this ordinance or  any application thereof to 

any person or circumstances is held invalid, the circumstances shall not be 
affected thereby. 

 
Section 3. Amendment of Section. The title and chapters of Title 1 - General Provisions, 

Chapter 1.16 - General Penalty, Section 1.16.035-Minor Offense Fine Schedule, 
amending the fine schedule from “per offense” to a “graduated” find schedule 
for all minor offense violations of the Thorne Bay Municipal Code. The fines 
are hereby amended and added to the Thorne Bay Municipal Code. 

 
 

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED January 5, 2020 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 

_____  _ 

Teri Feibel, CMC 

_____  

Lucinda Edenfield, Mayor 

 
 

[Sponsor: Thom Cunningham] 
[Introduction: January  05, 2021] 

[Public Hearing: January  19, 2021] 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

1 . 16.030 VIOLATIONS-SEPARATE OFFENSE. 

1 . 16.035 MINOR OFFENSE FINE S CHEDULE. 

FINES MUST BE PAID TO THE COURT. 

Amending 

Title 1 General Provisions 
 

Chapter and Sections shall read as follows: 

Every act prohibited by Thorne Bay ordinances is unlawful. Failure to comply with any 
mandatory requirement of any ordinance is also unlawful. Unless another penalty is expressly 
provided by a Thorne Bay ordinance for any particular provision or section, each violation of 
this code is an infraction, punishable by a fine up to three hundred dollars per violation. Each 
act or violation and every day upon which a violation occurs or continues constitutes a 
separate offense unless stated otherwise in any ordinance. (Ordinance 18-01-02-01; Prior Ord. 
88-23 § 5(part), 1988) 

 
 

In accordance with as 29.25.070(a), citations for the following offenses may be disposed of as 
provided in as 12.25.195-.230, withouta court appearance, upon payment of the fine amounts 
listed below plus the state surcharge required by as 12.55.039 and as 29.25.074. 

 

If an offense is not listed on a fine schedule, the defendant must appear in court to answer the 
charges. The Alaska court system’s rules of minor offense procedure apply to all offenses listed 
below. Citations charging these offenses must meet the requirements of minor offense rule 3. 
If a person charged with one of these offenses appears in court and is found guilty, the penalty 
imposed for the offense may not exceed the fine amount for that offense listed below. 



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 3 of 6 
 
 
 
 

THORNE BAY OFFENSES IN UNIFORM MINOR OFFENSE TABLE (UMOT) 
INSTRUCTIONS 
The following offenses are currently listed in the court's Uniform Minor Offense Table. To update this list, contact the city 
attorney or city official authorized to notify the Alaska Court System's Administrative Office of all needed updates to the table 
by using the 'Request to Update UMOT' form (TR-550): https://public.courts.alaska.gov/web/forms/docs/TR-550.pdf 

Ordinance Number Ordinance Description Of f  ense Fine 
Schedule 

Amount for 
Optional / 

Correctable 

Maximum 
  Appearance Fine 
  type: Permitted 

for 
  Mandatory 

Optional or 
Mandatory 

  Correctable  

TBMC6.04.020(G) Failure to License Animals - 1st of f  ense Optional $50.00  
 Failure to License Animals – 2nd o f f  ense Optional $  

 Failure to License Animals – 3rd of f  ense Optional $  
TBMC6.04.020(M) Use of  Animal License for Animal Other than which Issued - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.020(N) Failure to Notif  y Change in Animal Ownership to Clerks Of f ice - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.050(A) Animal Running at Large - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.050(B) Grazing on Public Space without Consent of  City - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.050(C) Allow Livestock on Private Property within City - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  

TBMC6.04.050(D) Release Tied/Conf  ined Animal without Owner's Permission - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  
TBMC6.04.055(A)(1) Animal to Run at Large within the City - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.055(A)(2) Allow Dog on Public School Grounds During School Hours - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  

TBMC6.04.055(A)(3) Permit a Dog in Public Parks without a Leash - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.055(A)(4) Allow Dog into Location with Food Unless Certif  ied Service Dog - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.055(A)(5) Keep Animal af  ter Creating 3 Disturbance Complaints in 1 Month - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.055(A)(6) Failure to Conf  ine Female Dog in Heat - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  
TBMC6.04.070(A) Humane Care & Treatment - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  
TBMC6.04.070(B) Animal Abuse - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC6.04.070(C) Animal Abandonment - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 4 of 6 
 
 
 
 

TBMC6.04.070(D) Giving Live Animals as Prizes - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC6.04.070(E) Failure to Render Assistance - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  
TBMC6.04.070(F) Knowingly Expose Animal to Poison - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC6.04.080 Keeping of  Wild Animals - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  

TBMC6.04.090 Animal Waste - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  

TBMC8.04.050(A) Throwing Firework Prohibited - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  

TBMC8.04.050(B) Throwing Fireworks f  rom a Motor Vehicle - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  

TBMC8.04.050(C) Store/Keep/Sell/Fireworks w/in 50 f t of  Gas/Volatile Liquids Prohibited - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  

TBMC8.04.050(D) Discharge Fireworks within 1000 f t of  Hospital - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  

TBMC8.04.050(E) Discharge Fireworks under/on a Motor Vehicle - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  

TBMC8.04.050(F) Discharg Fireworks within 50 f t of  where Fireworks are Sold - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  

TBMC8.04.050(G) Mishandle Fireworks - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  

TBMC9.02.020 Curf  ew for Minors, Control of  Minors, Unlawf ul to Allow Minor to Violate Curf  ew Optional $50.00  

TBMC9.02.025 Curf  ew for Minors, Aiding and Abetting Violations Optional $50.00  

TBMC9.02.030 Curf  ew for Minors, Curf  ew Hours Optional $50.00  

TBMC9.05.010(A) Discharge of  Firearms Prohibited w/in City Limits - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $150.00  

TBMC9.05.010(B) Discharge of  Firearms Prohibited into/across Body of Water Thorne Bay - 1st+ 
Of  f  

Optional $150.00  

TBMC9.05.010(C) Discharge of  Firearms Prohibited Half  Hour Before Sunrise/Af  ter Sunset - 1st+ 
Of  f  

Optional $150.00  

TBMC9.05.010(D) Discharge of  Firearms Prohibited Kasaan Rd between "No Shooting" Sign - 1st+ 
Of  f  

Optional $150.00  

TBMC9.08.020 Alcohol Beverages-State License Requirement - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.030 Alcohol Beverages-Hours of  Consumption - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.040 Alcohol Beverages-Access of  Persons Under 21 to Licensed Premises - 1st+ Of  f Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.050 Alcohol Beverages-Possession or Consumption Under the Age of  21 Mandatory  $300.00 
TBMC9.08.060 Alcohol Beverages-Furnishing of  Alcoholic Beverages to Persons Under the Age 

of  21 
Mandatory  $300.00 

TBMC9.08.080 Alcohol Beverages-Purchase by Persons Under the Age of  21 Mandatory  $300.00 
TBMC9.08.090 Alcohol Beverages-Unlawf ul Drinking on Premises - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.100 Alcohol Beverages-Solicitation of  Alcohol Beverage - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.110 Alcohol Beverages-Sale/Disposition of  Alcoholic Beverages to Drunken Person - 
1st+ Of  f  

Optional $200.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 5 of 6 
 
 
 
 

TBMC9.08.120 Alcohol Beverages-Access of  Drunken Person to Licensed Premises - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.130 Alcohol Beverages-Obligation to Enforce Restriction w/in Licensed Premises - 
1st+ Of  f  

Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.140 Alcohol Beverages-Stock to be Kept on Premises - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.150 Alcohol Beverages-Right of  Inspection - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.160 Alcohol Beverages-Playing Music Restriction - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.08.180 Alcohol Beverages-Possession of  Dangerous Weapons(Knives) Prohibited - 
1st+ Of  f  

Optional $200.00  

TBMC9.12.030 Prohibition, Unlawf ul Acts, Disturbance of  Survey Monuments - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $100.00  

TBMC9.20.020 Litter Control-Littering Prohibited - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.030 Litter Control-Prevention of  Scattering - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.040 Litter Control-Tampering with Litter Receptacles - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.050 Litter Control-Walkways, Streets, & Alleys - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.060 Litter Control-Private Premises - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.070 Litter Control-Public Places - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.080 Litter Control-Business Premises - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.090 Litter Control-Littering f  rom Vehicles - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.100 Litter Control-Litter f  rom Aircraf  t - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.110 Litter Control-Litter in Parks - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.120 Litter Control-Construction Sites - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.130 Litter Control-Parking Lot Litter Receptacle Required - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.140 Litter Control-Litter Receptacles Obstructing Traf f ic - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.150 Litter Control-Commercial Handbills Prohibited - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.170 Litter Control-Obedience of  Law Required - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.180 Litter Control-Obedience to Of f icials Required - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.190 Litter Control-Emergency Powers - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.20.200 Litter Control-Compliance Order - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $75.00  

TBMC9.22.020 Water Hydrants-Description and Location - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  

TBMC9.22.030 Water Hydrants-Intended Use - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  

TBMC9.22.040 Water Hydrants-Accessibility - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  

TBMC9.22.050 Water Hydrants-Fence Openings and Gates - 1st+ Of  f  Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.020(a)(1) Parking on Roadway Prohibited for Purpose of  Commercial Advertising Optional $50.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 
 

TBMC10.20.020(a)(2) Parking on Roadway Prohibited for Purpose of  Displaying "For Sale" Signs Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.020(a)(3) Parking on Roadway Prohibited for Non-Emergency Vehicle Greasing/Repairing Optional $50.00  
TBMC10.20.020(a)(4) Parking on Roadway Prohibited for Commercial Car Washing Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.020(c) Parking Prohibited - Obstructing Movement of  Vehicular Traf f ic Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.020(d)(3) Parking Prohibited - Camping Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.020(d)(4) Parking Prohibited - Parking in Loading/Unloading Zone Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.020(e) Parking Prohibited - Disabled or Abandoned Vehicle Longer Than 48 Hours Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.030(a) Parking in Excess of  Posted Time Limit-Harbor Parking Permit Required >12 hrs Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.030(c) Parking in Excess of  Posted Time Limit-Park & Sell Permit Required Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.040 Parking, Standing, Stopping - Parking in Excess of  Posted Time Limit Optional $50.00  

TBMC10.20.050(b) Emergency, Street Maintenance and Snow Removal Vehicles-Obstruction Optional $100.00  

TBMC12.04.010 City RV Park-Failure to File Application&Pay Security/Occupancy Fees Prior to 
Occupy 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.04.040 City RV Park-Eviction-Failure to Vacate Premises by Date Specif  ied in Eviction 
Notice 

Mandatory  $300.00 

TBMC12.04.050(a) City RV Park-Renter Obligations-Failure to Maintain Clean/Orderly Premises Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.04.050(b) City RV Park-Failure to Dispose of  Rubbish, Garbage or Other Waste as 
Directed 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.04.050(c) City RV Park-Failure to Avoid Deliberate/Negligent Destruction/Damage to 
Property 

Optional $100.00  

TBMC12.04.050(d) City RV Park-Failure to Respect Privacy, Rights, and Privileges of  Neighbors Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.04.050(e) City RV Park-Failure to Comply with Directions/Requests by City Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.04.050(f  ) City RV Park-Failure to Comply with Quiet Hours of  10pm-7am Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.04.050(g) City RV Park-Failure to Comply with Vehicle Speed of  5mph Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.04.070(a) City RV Park-Prohibited f  rom Parking on Roadway Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.04.070(c) City RV Park- Permanent/Temporary Storage Buildings/Containers Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.06.040(A) City Parks/Rec Areas-Unlawf ul Tampering/Def  acing/Removing/Destructing 
Structures 

Optional $100.00  

TBMC12.06.040(B) City Parks/Rec Area-Driving/Parking within Restricted Recreational Areas Optional $100.00  

TBMC12.06.040(C) City Parks/Rec Areas-Possession of  Firearms or Weapons Prohibited Optional $100.00  

TBMC12.06.040(D) City Parks/Rec Area-Possession/Consumption of  Alcohol/Controlled Dangerous 
Subs 

Optional $300.00  

TBMC12.06.040(E) City Parks/Rec Area-Camping Prohibited Anywhere Except Designated Areas Optional $100.00  

TBMC12.06.040(F) City Parks/Rec Area-Prohibited for Persons to Enter Area Posted as Closed Optional $100.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 7 of 6 
 
 
 
 

TBMC12.06.040(G) City Parks/Rec Area-Threateni ng/Abusive, Disorderly Conduct/Behavior 
Prohibited 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC12.06.040(H) City Parks/Rec Area-Failure to Produce Permit He Claims to Have Upon 
Request 

Optional $75.00  

TBMC12.06.040(I) City Parks/Rec Area-Disturbing Authorized Activity/Occupancy Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC12.06.070 City Parks/Rec Area-Ignitable and Combustible Materials Prohibited Optional $100.00  

TBMC12.06.100 City Parks/Rec Area-Use Park/Facility without Paying Fee is Prohibited Optional $100.00  

TBMC12.06.110 City Parks/Rec Area-Use of  Park/Rec Area When Closed is Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.08.030 Thorne Bay Boat Ramp-Parking and Storage Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC12.08.060 Thorne Bay Boat Ramp-Camping Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC13.02.010 Utility-Application Form Failure to Complete Application for Services Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.02.020 Application Amendments-Failure to Notif  y City of  Changes to Service Optional $100.00  

TBMC13.08.130 Customer's Plumbing Optional $100.00  

TBMC13.08.140 Required Connections Optional $100.00  

TBMC13.20.010 Sewer Designated-Unlawf ul Deposits into Sanitation Al Sewage Collection 
System 

Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.20.020 Sewer Unlawf ul Connection Causing Waste Water to Enter Sanitary Water 
System 

Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.20.030 Sewer Unlawf ul Connection to City Service Lines without Prior Payment and 
Permit 

Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.20.040 Unlawf ul Tampering of  City Sewer Inf  rastructure, Materials, Equipment & Pond Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.24.010 Failure to Permit Utility Access to Utility Line During Reasonable Hours Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.28.095 Water-Failure to Disclose Amounts Owed on Property Service Fees to New 
Owners 

Mandatory  $1,000.00 

TBMC13.28.120 Resale of  Water Without Permit is Prohibited Mandatory  $1,000.00 
TBMC13.40.090 Standby Fire Protection Service Connections Violations of  Regulations Optional $200.00  

TBMC13.40.160 Customer's Plumbing-Failure to Comply with City Plumbing Code Optional $200.00  

TBMC13.40.170 Unlawf ul Operation/Tampering of  Meter Stop of  Appurtenances on Service 
Connection 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC13.44.020 Installation-Unlawf ul Installation of  Water Meters Optional $300.00  

TBMC13.44.050 Join Several Customers-Take Advantage of  Single Charge/Large Quantity Rate 
Prohibited 

Optional $500.00  

TBMC13.44.070 Failure to Permit Access by Utility for Installing/Reading of  Meters Optional $500.00  

TBMC13.52.080 Unauthorized Turn-On Optional $200.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 8 of 6 
 
 
 
 

TBMC13.56.030 Damage to Department Equipment Mandatory  $1,000.00 
TBMC13.60.010 Operation-Unlawf ul to Tamper with or Open Valve of  Any Fire Hydrant Optional $500.00  

TBMC13.64.020 Water Misc Provisions-Failure to Notif  y Dept of  Large Quantity Uses in Water Optional $100.00  

TBMC13.64.030 Access to Property-Failure to Permit Operator Access Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.70.030(B) Unlawf ul to Deposit Garbage in Location not Designated as Solid Waste Site Mandatory  $1,000.00 
TBMC13.70.172 Unlawf ul to Deposit Anything Other than Aluminum where Designated as 

"Aluminum Only" 
Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.70.174 Ash Disposal-Unlawf ul Disposal of Ash Optional $100.00  

TBMC13.70.176 Unlawf ul Disposal of  Special Waste Mandatory  $500.00 
TBMC13.70.180 Unlawf ul Access to Landf  ill Mandatory  $1,000.00 
TBMC13.70.182 Solid Waste-Prohibited Disposal Items Mandatory  $1,000.00 
TBMC13.70.186 Unauthorized Use of  Collection Containers, Trash Receptacles, and Dumpsters Optional $150.00  

TBMC13.70.320 Solid Waste-Fraud or Abuse of  Solid Waste Services Mandatory  $500.00 
TBMC13.70.370 Unlawf ul to Damage/Tamper w/ Solid Waste Equipment, Structure or 

Appurtenance 
Mandatory  $1,000.00 

TBMC15.04.010 Buildings - Non-Compliance Of Setback Requirements Optional $100.00  

TBMC15.04.020(b) Buildings - Development Plan Required Optional $150.00  

TBMC15.04.020(F) Buildings - Failure To Cease Development Af ter Stop Work Order Receipt Optional $200.00  

TBMC15.04.020(F) Buildings - Installation Of  Utility Hookups w/Out Permit Optional $200.00  

TBMC16.40.010 Subdivisions - Illegal Sales Optional $500.00  

TBMC16.40.030 Subdivisions - Unlawf ully Subdivided-Violation Of  Terms Optional $500.00  
TBMC17.04.022 Residential Zone-Failure Submit Development Plans Optional $150.00  

TBMC17.04.022(b) Residential Zone-Failure Obtain Conditional Use Permit Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.022(c) Residential Zone-Prohibited Uses Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.022(d) Residential Zone-Development Standards Fail To Adhere To Zoning Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.022(e) Residential Zone-Develop Standards Fail To Adhere To Zoning (Tract B) Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.023 Deer Creek Resid.-Fail To Submit Development Plans Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.023(b) Deer Creek Resid.-Fail To Obtain Special Land Use Permit Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(c)(2) Deer Creek Resid.-Prohibited Uses-Private Garbage Pits Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(c)(3) Deer Creek Resid.-Prohibited Uses-Storage Heavy Equipment Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(c)(4) Deer Creek Resid.-Store Derelict Vehicles/Accumulation Of  Personal Property Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(c)(5) Deer Creek Resid.-Prohibited Uses-Raising Animals/Livestock/Poultry Optional $200.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 9 of 6 
 
 
 
 

TBMC17.04.023(d) Deer Creek Resid-Failure To Adhere To Property Development Standards Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(1) Deer Creek Resid-Failure To Adhere To Minimum Lot Size Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(10) Deer Creek Resid-Fences Exceed Height Or Obstruct Vehicular Traf f ic Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(2) Deer Creek Resid-Failure Adhere To Parking Requirements Of  f  Street On 
Premises 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(3) Deer Creek Resid-Failure To Adhere To Parking Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(4) Deer Creek Resid-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(5) Deer Creek Resid-Property Development Standards Density Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(6) Deer Creek Resid-Failure To Connect To City Utilities Prior To Occupancy Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(8) Deer Creek Resid-Property Development Standards Exceeding Building Density Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.023(d)(9) Deer Creek Resid-Property Development Standards Signs Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.024 Residential/Commercial I-Failure Obtain Development Permit Prior To 
Construction 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.024(b) Resid./Cmrcl. I-Failure Obtain Conditional Use Permit Non-Residential Use Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.024(c) Resid./Cmrcl. I-Fail Adhere Property Develop. Standards Min Lot 
Size/Width/Density 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.024(c)(3) Resid./Cmrcl. I-Fail Adhere Parking Requirements Of  f  Street On Premises Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.024(c)(4) Resid./Cmrcl. I-Failure To Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.024(c)(5) Resid./Cmrcl. I-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.024(c)(6)(D ) Resid./Cmrcl. I-Building Density Exceeded Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.024(c)(7) Resid./Cmrcl. I-Fences Exceeding Height Or Obstructing Vehicular Traf f ic Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.024(c)(8) Residential/Commercial I-Signs Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025 Residential/Commercial II-Failure Obtain Development Permit Prior To 
Construction 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025(b) Resid./Cmrcl. II-Failure Obtain Conditional Use Permit For Non-Residential Use Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025(c) Resid./Cmrcl. II-Fail Adhere Property Develop Standards Min Lot 
Size/Width/Density 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025(c)(3) Resid./Cmrcl. II-Failure Adhere Parking Requirements Of  f  Street On Premises Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025(c)(4) Resid./Cmrcl. II-Failure To Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025(c)(5) Resid./Cmrcl. II-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025(c)(6)(C) Resid./Cmrcl. II-More Than One Principal Structure On Property Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025(c)(6)(D ) Resid./Cmrcl. II-Building Density Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.025(c)(7) Resid./Cmrcl. II-Fences Exceeding Height Or Obstructing Vehicular Traf f ic Optional $200.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 10 of 
 
 
 
 

TBMC17.04.025(c)(8) Residential/Commercial II-Signs Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.026 Residential/Commercial III-Failure Obtain Development Permit Prior To 
Construction 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.026(b) Resid./Cmrcl. III-Failure Obtain Conditional Use Permit For Non-Residential Use Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.026(c) Resid./Cmrcl. III-Failure To File A Notice Of  Intent Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.026(f  ) Resid./Cmrcl. III-Fail Adhere Property Develop Standard Min Lot 
Size/Width/Density 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.026(f  )(3) Resid./Cmrcl. III-Prop. Develop. Standards, Fail Ahdere Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.026(f  )(4) Resid./Cmrcl. III-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.026(f  )(5) Resid./Cmrcl. III-Fail Adhere To Parking Requirements Of  f  Street On Premises Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.026(f  )(6) Resid./Cmrcl. III-Building Density Exceeded Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.026(f  )(9) Residential/Commercial III-Signs Prohibited Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.027 Commercial Zone-Fail Obtain Development Permit Prior To Construction Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.027(b) Commercial Zone-Fail Obtain Conditional Use Permit Non-Permitted 
Commercial Uses 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.027(c) Commercial Zone-Fail Adhere To Prop. Develop. Standards Min Lot 
Size/Width/Density 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.027(c)(3) Commercial Zone-Failure To Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.027(c)(4) Commercial Zone-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.027(c)(5) Commercial Zone-Fail To Adhere To Parking Requirements Of  f  Street On 
Premises 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.027(c)(6) Commercial Zone-Signs Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.028 Industrial Zone-Fail Obtain Development Permit Prior To Construction Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.028(b) Industrial Zone-Fail Obtain Conditional Use Permit Non-Permitted Commercial 

Uses 
Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.028(c) Industrial Zone-Prohibited Uses Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.028(d) Industrial Zone-Fail Adhere Property Develop Standards Min Lot 
Size/Width/Density 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.028(e) Industrial Zone-Failure To Adhere To Parking Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.028(f  ) Industrial Zone-Fail Obtain DEC Approval Private Sewer Treatment 
Plans/Subdivision 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.028(g) Industrial Zone-Fences Exceeding Height Or Obstructing Vehicular Traf f ic Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.029 Waterf  ront Zone-Failure To Obtain Development Permit Prior To Construction Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.029(d) Waterf  ront Zone-Fail Obtain Coditional Use Permit For Uses Not Outright 
Permitted 

Optional $200.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 11 of 
 
 
 
 

TBMC17.04.029(e) Waterf  ront Zone-Fail Adhere Property Development Standards Lot 
Size/Width/Density 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.029(e)(3) Waterf  ront Zone-Failure To Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.029(e)(4) Waterf  ront Zone-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.029(e)(5) Waterf  ront Zone-Failure Adhere To Parking Requirements Of  f  Street On 
Premises 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.029(e)(6) Waterf  ront Zone-Signs Causing Glare Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.029(e)(7) Waterf  ront Zone-Fences Exceeding Height Or Obstructing Vehicular Traf f ic Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.030 Public Zone-Development Permit Required Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.030(c) Public Zone-Failure Adhere Property Development Standards Lot 

Size/Width/Density 
Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.030(c)(3) Public Zone-Failure To Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.030(c)(4) Public Zone-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.030(c)(5) Public Zone-Failure To Adhere To Parking Requirements Of  f  Street On 
Premises 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.030(c)(6) Public Zone-Signs Causing Glare Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.030(c)(7) Public Zone-Fences Exceeding Height Or Obstructing Vehicular Traf f ic Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031 Low Density Residential-Failure Obtain Development Permit Prior To 
Construction 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(b) Low Density Residential-Fail Obtain Cndtnl Use Permit For Non-Permitted Cmrcl 
Uses 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(c) Low Density Residential-Prohibited Uses Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(d) Low Density Residential-Fail Adhere Property Dvlpmnt Stndrds Min Lot 
Size/Width/Density 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(d)(4) Low Density Residential-Failure To Adhere To Parking Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(d)(5) Low Density Residential-Failure To Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(d)(6) Low Density Residential-Development Impeding Visibility Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(d)(7) Low Density Residential-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(d)(8) Low Density Residential-Maximum Lot Coverage Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.031(d)(9) Low Density Residential-Fence Exceeding Height Or Obstructing Vehicular 
Traf f ic 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.032 Medium Density Residential-Fail Obtain Development Permit Prior To 
Construction 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.032(b) Medium Density Residtl.-Fail Obtain Cndtnl Use Permit For Non-Permitted 
Cmrcl Uses 

Optional $200.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 12 of 
 
 
 
 

TBMC17.04.032(c) Medium Density Residential-Prohibited Uses Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.032(d) Med. Density Rsdntl-Fail Adhere Prprty Dvlpmt Standards Min Lot 
Size/Width/Density 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.032(d)(4) Medium Density Residential-Failure Adhere To Parking Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.032(d)(5) Medium Density Residential-Fail Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.032(d)(5)(D) Medium Density Residential-Development Impeding Visibility Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.032(d)(6) Medium Density Residential-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.032(d)(7) Medium Density Residential-Maximum Lot Coverage Exceeded Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.032(d)(8) Medium Density Residential-Fence Exceed Height Or Obstructing Vehicular 

Traf f ic 
Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.033 High Density Residential-Fail Obtain Development Permit Prior To Construction Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.033(b) High Density Rsdntl-Fail Obtain Cndtnl Use Permit For Non-Permitted 

Commercial Use 
Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.033(c) High Density Residential-Prohibited Uses Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.033(d) High Density Rsdntl-Fail Adhere Prprty Dvlpmnt Standard Min Lot 

Size/Width/Density 
Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.033(d)(4) High Density Residential-Maximum Lot Coverage Exceeded Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.033(d)(5) High Density Residential-Failure To Adhere To Parking Requirements Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.033(d)(6) High Density Residential-Failure To Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.033(d)(6)(C) High Density Residential-Development Impeding Visibility Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.033(d)(7) High Density Residential-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.033(d)(8) High Density Residential-Fences Exceed Height Or Obstructing Vehicular Traf f ic Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034 Greentree Heights Residential-Fail Obtain Development Permit Prior To 
Construction 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(b) Greentree Heights Residential-Fail Obtain Condtl Use Permit For Non-Permitted 
Uses 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(c) Greentree Heights Residential-Prohibited Uses Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.034(d)(1) Greentree Heights Residential-Fail Adhere Prprty Dvlpmnt Standards Min Lot 

Size 
Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(d)(10) Greentree Heights Resid.-Fences Exceed Height Or Obstructing Vehicular 
Traf f ic 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(d)(11) Greentree Heights Resid.-Fail Inspect Septic System Prior Construct Building Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(d)(2) Greentree Heights Residential-Failure To Adhere To Parking Requirements Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(d)(3) Greentree Heights Residential-Failure To Adhere To Setback Requirements Optional $200.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 13 of 
 
 
 
 

TBMC17.04.034(d)(4) Greentree Heights Residential-Building Height Exceeded Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(d)(6) Greentree Heights Residential-Failure To Hook Into Municipal Utilities Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(d)(8) Greentree Heights Residential-Development Fail Adhere To Building 
Requirements 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.034(d)(9) Greentree Heights Residential-Signs Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.036(b) Mobile Home Park-Fail Obtain Conditional Use Permit From City Planning 
Commission 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.036(c) Mobile Home Park-Failure To Adhere To Mobile Home Park Design 
Requirements 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.036(c)(10) Mobile Home Park-Non-Compliant Water Supply And/Or Sewage Disposal 
Systems 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.036(c)(12) Mobile Home Park-Fail Provide Screen View Obscure Fence Arnd Mobile Home 
Park 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.036(c)(7) Mobile Home Park-Failure To Adhere To Setbacks Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.037(b) Rec. Vehicle/Travel Trailer Park-Fail Obtain Cndtnl Use Permit Planning 

Commission 
Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.037(c) Rec. Vehicle/Travel Trailer Park-Fail Adhere To Development Standards Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.04.037(d) Rec. Vehicle/Travel Trailer Park-Fail License Rec. Vehicle Within Trailer Park Optional $200.00  
TBMC17.04.041(d) Of  f  -Street Parking Requirements-Violation Of  Required Parking Spaces Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.05.030 Obedience To Off icials Reqrd.-Fail/Ref  usal To Comply w/Code Enf  orcement 
Of f icer 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC17.05.070(b) Unlawf ul Threat/Physical Force Cause Harm/Obstruct/Impede/Interf  ere 
Investigation 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC18.20.050(b) Harbor-Use of  Harbor Facilities without Payment of  Rentals/Fees Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC18.30.020(a) Harbor-Conduct in Harbor-A-Failure to Display Registration Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC18.30.020(b) Harbor-Conduct in Harbor-B-Failure to Securely Moor Vessel Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC18.30.020(e) Harbor-Conduct in Harbor-E-Illegally Parked Vehicles Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC18.30.140(A) Rules for Harbor Use-Careless/Reckless Operation of  Vessels Prohibited Optional $100.00  

TBMC18.30.140(B) Rules for Harbor Use-Prohibited Acts-Mooring Oversized Vessels Optional $100.00  

TBMC18.30.140(C) Rules for Harbor Use-Prohibited Acts-Using Bumpers that Cause Damage to 
Docks 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC18.30.140(D) Dumping Unauthorized Waste into/onto Waters/Land/Harbor Facilities 
Prohibited 

Optional $200.00  

TBMC18.30.140(E) Discharge of  Sewage f  rom Vessels within the Harbor Jurisdiction is Prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC18.30.140(F) Rules for Harbor Use-Unattended Fishnets or Other Fish-Taking Devise 
Prohibited 

Optional $50.00  



Report Created: 11/26/2019 5:01:06AM 

NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Uniform Minor Offense Table: Thorne Bay Page 14 of 
 
 
 
 

TBMC18.30.140(G) Rules for Harbor Use-Unauthorized Water Skiing/Scuba Diving Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC18.30.140(H) Storing of  Personal Items Including Combustible/Explosive Materials Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC18.30.140(I) bstructing traf f ic along f  loats prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC18.30.140(J) se of  harbor f  iref  ighting equipment for other purpose prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC18.30.140(K) isregard, damage, tamper with harbor signs or notices prohibited Optional $200.00  

TBMC18.30.140(L) Sub-assigning or subleasing assigned mooring space Optional $100.00  
TBMC18.30.140(M) Disturb the reasonable peace and privacy of  others prohibited in harbor Optional $50.00  

TBMC18.30.140(N) bstructing or interf  ering with harbormaster duties Optional $100.00  

TBMC18.30.140(R) ermit dog on harbor facilities without leash Optional $50.00  
TBMC18.30.140(S) perating bicycles, skateboard, roller skates or similar in harbor prohibited Optional $50.00  



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

ORDINANCE 
_________________ 
CITY OF THORNE BAY 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, - AMENDING 

TITLE 10-VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC; CHAPTER 10.20 – PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING, SECTION 
10.20.020 – PARKING PROHIBITED 

 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 
 
 

Section 1. Classification. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature, the chapter 
and section hereby amended shall be added to the Thorne Bay Municipal Code. 

 
Section 2.  Severability.  If any provisions of this ordinance or  any application thereof to 

any person or circumstances is held invalid, the circumstances shall not be 
affected thereby. 

 
Section 3. Amendment of Section. The title and chapters of Title 10 – Vehicles and Traffic, 

Chapter 10.20 – Parking, Standing and Stopping, Section 10.20.020-Parking 
Prohibited, is hereby amended, and added to the Thorne Bay Municipal Code. 

 
 

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED January 19, 2020 

 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 

_____  _ 

Teri Feibel, CMC 

_____  

Lucinda Edenfield, Mayor 

 
 

[Sponsor: Thom Cunningham] 
[Introduction: January  05, 2021] 

[Public Hearing: January  19, 2021] 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

Amending 
Title 10 – Vehicles and Traffic 

Chapter 10.20-Parking, Standing and Stopping 
Section 10.20.020-Parking Prohibited 

 

 CHAPTER 10.20  -  PARKING, STANDING  AND STOPPING –................................................  

10.20.010 RESTRICTIONS AND EXCEPTIONS - AUTHORITY. 
10.20.020 PARKING PROHIBITED: 
10.20.030 OFF-STREET PARKING PLACE – TIME LIMITED PARKING/PERMIT 
PARKING 
10.20.040 PARKING IN EXCESS OF POSTED TIME LIMIT – PERMIT PARKING. 
10.20.050 EMERGENCY, STREET MAINTENANCE AND SNOW REMOVAL 
VEHICLES-OBSTRUCTION PROHIBITED. 
10.20.060 OFF-STREET PARKING PLACE--REMOVAL OF UNAUTHORIZED VEHICLES. 
10.20.070 REPEALED.  
10.20.080 VIOLATIONS-PENALTIES. 

 
 

 CHAPTER 10.20 -  PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING –  
 
 

  1 0 .20.010 RESTRICTIONS AND EX CEPTIONS -  AUTHORITY.  

The mayor or his/her designee is authorized to determine when and where parking, 
standing or stopping restrictions or exceptions enumerated in this section are required, 
or will contribute to the safe and orderly flow of traffic, or will contribute to the efficient 
use of public streets or public places or property; and to implement such restrictions or 
exceptions by causing signs to be erected: 

A. To authorize parking on the left-hand side of certain one-way streets where such 
parking would otherwise be prohibited; 

B. To prohibit parking or standing on the left-hand side of any one-way street. No 
person shall park or stand a vehicle in violation of such signs; 

C. To prohibit parking upon any street or highway when the width of the roadway does 
not exceed twenty-four feet, or upon one side of a street or highway as indicated 
by such signs when the width of the roadway does not exceed thirty-six feet. No 
person shall park a vehicle in violation of such signs 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

10.20.020 PARKING PROHIBITED: 

D. To prohibit parking upon either or both sides of any street or highway adjacent to 
any school property when such parking would in his opinion, interfere with traffic 
or create a hazardous situation. No person shall park a vehicle in violation of such 
signs; 

E. Limiting the length of time, a vehicle may occupy a parking space. No person shall 
park a vehicle in violation of such signs; 

F. To prohibit parking, standing, or stopping of vehicles during certain hours of the day 
or night. No person may park, stand or stop a vehicle in violation of such signs; 

G. To prohibit the parking of any of certain large vehicles such as trailers, travel homes, 
trucks, etc., on designated streets within the central business district between the 
hours of six a.m. and eight p.m. No person may park any such vehicle in violation of 
such signs; 

H. To prohibit parking, standing or stopping where such would create an especially 
hazardous condition or would cause an unusual delay in traffic. No person may stop, 
stand or park a vehicle in violation of such signs. (Ord. 18-08-21-02; renumbering of 
prior section 10.20.070; Prior Ord. 84-03-22-01 § 14, 1984) 

 

 

A. No person shall park a vehicle upon a roadway for the purpose of: 
1. Commercial advertising; 

2. Displaying such vehicle for sale; 

3. Greasing or repairing such vehicle, not necessitated by an emergency; 

4. Washing such vehicle when the person so engaged is in the business of washing 
vehicles. (Ord. 84-03-22-01 § 3, 1984) (Prior Section 10.20.030 (a-d)) 

B. No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid 
conflict with other traffic or in compliance with law or the directions of a police 
officer or traffic control device, in any of the following places and no signs are 
required: (Prior Section 10.20.040 (a-c)) 

1. Within ten feet of an intersection; 

2. Within fifteen feet of any fire hydrant; 

3. Within five feet of a crosswalk, except at an intersection where it shall be ten 
feet. (Prior Section 10.20.040 (a-c)) 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

F.  NO PARKING  ___  BEGINNING OCTOBER 1ST 

C. No person shall park any vehicle upon a street or highway, other than an alley, in 
such a manner or under such conditions as to leave available less than ten feet of 
such roadway for the free movement of vehicular traffic (Prior Section 10.20.010) 

D. No person may remove, obliterate, obscure, cover or move any chalk mark or other 
mark or indication placed by a police officer or parking enforcement officer upon a 
tire or any part of a vehicle which is parked in a public parking zone or space; 
provided such marks or objects may be moved or removed in the process of moving 
the vehicle from the parking space or after the vehicle has been moved from the 
space. (Prior Section 10.20.080 (a)) 

1. A vehicle which has not moved from a parking space shall be deemed to have 
remained parked or standing in such space until moved. For the purpose of this 
chapter, a vehicle must vacate the space occupied and be driven completely 
through a street intersection before it shall be deemed to have been moved from 
the space. (Prior Section 10.20.080 (b)) 

2. Each period or part of a period of time a vehicle remains parked or standing 
beyond that time permitted under this chapter or as posted shall constitute a 
separate violation, except that each separate day upon which such a continuing 
violation exist shall be separate violation if the period of permitted parking is 
twenty-four hours or greater. Only one citation may be issued during eachperiod 
which constitutes a separate violation. (Prior Section 10.20.080 (c)) 

3. No overnight camping allowed on City property unless otherwise posted. (Prior 
Section 10.20.080 (d)) 

4. No person shall park a vehicle within an alley in the central business traffic 
district or any business district except for the expeditious loading or unloading 
of freight or materials and then the vehicle shall be parked in such manner or 
under such conditions as to leave available not less than ten feet of width of the 
alley for the free movement of vehicular traffic. (Prior Section 10.20.020) 

E. No person shall leave a disabled or abandoned property on any public street, alley 
or road for more than forty-eight hours. 

THROUGH APRIL 30TH OF EACH YEAR.. 

(Prior Section 10.20.050 (a))(Ordinance 18-08-21-02) 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

 
Definition. For the purpose of this section, 

1. "Public parking spaces” include all city owned lands including roadways and 
rights-of-ways 

2. "Private parking spaces" include both publicly and privately-owned off-street 
parking spaces which are reserved for the use of a specific individual or group of 
individuals or are otherwise restricted when such reservations or restrictions are 
posted. 

3. “Time limited parking/permit parking" include both publicly and privately-owned 
off-street parking spaces which are reserved for the use of a specific individual 
or group of individuals or are otherwise restricted when such reservations or 
restrictions are posted. 

4. Harbor Parking- Harbor Zone. Loading and unloading, except for the space 
designed for  the harbormaster, handicapped, ATV vehicles or special use 
vehicles. (Ordinance 18-08-21-02 Ss; 1-4) 

A. Harbor Parking--Permit Required for Over twelve hours. The parking of any vehicle, 
boat and/or trailer, motorcycle, RV or other at the Main Harbor, boat launch, and 
Davidson Landing Harbor areas shall be for no longer than twelve hours, unless a 
monthly parking permit is obtained at city hall. The permit shall be placed in such a 
position that it is easily viewed through the windshield, or attached in a secure 
manner to trailers, etc., as long as the permit is easily viewable by city personnel. 
The billing cycle for permit parking in these areas shall by from the first of each 
month to the first of the following month, to correspond to the city's billing cycle. 
The first month's permit fee shall be paid in advance at the time of application plus 
applicable deposit. If the subsequent invoice is not paid by the due date of the 
invoice it shall be considered revoked, and the vehicle shall be subject to any 
applicable provision of the municipal code. All vehicles with no visible way to identify 
the owner will be marked and impounded after two weeks. 

B. Park and Sell – Permit Required. Permits are sold on a thirty-day period extendable 
for one additional thirty-day period. Park and Sell is designated to Shoreline Drive 
across from the Port. The permit shall be placed in such a position that it is easily 
viewed through the windshield. All vehicles with no visible way to identify the owner 
will be marked and impounded after two weeks. 

10.20.030 OFF-STREET PARKING PLACE – T IME LIMITED PARKING/PERMIT PAR 
KING 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

10 .20.040 PARKING IN EXCESS OF POSTED TIME LIMIT – PERMIT PARKING. 

1 0 .20.050 EMERGENCY, STREET MAINTENANCE AND SNOW REMOVAL  

VEHICLES-OBSTRUCTION PROHIBITED. 

C. Permit Parking - The first month’s permit fee shall be paid in advance at the time of 
application plus applicable deposit. If the subsequent invoice is not paid by the due 
date of the invoice it shall be considered revoked, and the vehicle shall be subject 
to any applicable provision of the municipal code. All vehicles with no visible way to 
identify the owner will be marked and impounded after two weeks. 

D. Parking Permit Billings - All fee structures for Parking Permits will be set by 
resolution. Parking Permits will continue to be billed to the customer until the 
permit has been returned and written notification of removal is submitted to the 
City of Thorne Bay. (Ord. 18-08-21-02; Prior Ord. 03-06-05-02 §3, 2003: Ord. 84-03- 
22-01 §13, 1984 Ord. 09-01-06-01 ~2009)(Ord. 15-09-01-01 SS: D) (Prior Section 
10.20.060) 

 
 

A. No person in charge of a vehicle shall park or leave such vehicle in a parking space 
in the herein established parking lots in excess of the posted time limit. 

B. Any owner or operator of a vehicle who parks or leaves such vehicle in a parking 
space in the herein established time limited parking/permit parking lots in excess of 
the time permitted is guilty of an infraction and will be punished by the fine 
established in 1.16.035 if the offense is listed in that fine schedule or by the fine 
established in 1.16.030 if the offense is not listed in the fine schedule. (Ordinance 18- 

08-21-02) 
 
 

A. The mayor or his/her designee shall post signs on any streets where routine repairs 
are planned. These posted notices shall be in a prominent place and displayed at 
least eighteen hours before the work is to be performed. This section does not apply 
to emergency work that may, from time to time, become necessary on any public 
utility which is accessible from a street, alley or roadway and which work is required 
without time for planning and notification of the public. (prior section 10.20.050 (d)) 

B. No person shall leave any vehicle parked on any public street, alley or road when 
snow removal or road maintenance activities are planned or are in progress. Any 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

10.20.060 OFF-STREET PARKING PLACE--REMOVAL OF UNAUTHORIZED 
VEHICLES.  

vehicle that is parked on a public street, alley or road shall be moved by the owner 
or the owner’s representative within four hours after notification by the mayor or 
the mayor’s designated representative. 

C. In the event that the owner of a vehicle, which is parked on a public street, alley or 
road, is absent from his/her home, does not have a telephone, or lives in a place 
that is not readily accessible to the mayor, his designee or street maintenance 
crews, shall notify the city clerk in advance of a person who is available to move such 
parked vehicle. (Ord. 18-08-21-02, (Part), Prior 84-03-22-01 §12, 1984) 

 

A. Definition. For the purpose of this section, "private parking spaces" include both 
publicly and privately-owned off-street parking spaces which are reserved for the 
use of a specific individual or group of individuals or are otherwise restricted when 
such reservations or restrictions are posted. 

B. Removal of Unauthorized Vehicles. The rightful owner, lessee or other person 
authorized to control or use an off-street private parking space may remove an 
unauthorized vehicle from an off-street private parking space by requesting a 
towing company authorized by the state of Alaska to conduct towing operations in 
the city. 

C. The city shall not be liable for any towing, storage or other charges of for the acts of 
any person taken under the authority of this chapter. (Ord. 18-08-21-02; Prior Ord. 15-09- 
01-01 SS: D; Prior Ord. 09-01-06-01 ~2009; Ord. 03-06-05-02 §3, 2003: Ord. 84-03-22-01 §13, 1984) 

 
 

  1 0 .20.070 REPEALED.  
RENUMBERED AS SECTION 10.20.010 BY ORDINANCE 18-08-21-02. 

 
 

   1 0 . 20.080 VIOLATIONS-PENALTIES.  

Any person violating any provision of this chapter is guilty of an infraction and shall be 
punished by the fine established in 1.16.035 if the offense is listed in that fine schedule 
or by the fine established in 1.16.030 if the offense is not listed in the fine schedule. 
(Ordinance 18-08-21-02; Prior Ord. 18-01-02-01; Ord. 84-03-22-01 § 16, 1984) 



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

1.16.035.0- FINE SCHEDULE FOR VIOLATIONS OF TBMC TITLE 10-VEHICLES 
AND TRAFFIC 

FINES MUST BE PAID TO THE COURT.  

If an offense is not listed on a fine schedule, the defendant must appear in court to 
answer the charges. The Alaska court system’s rules of minor offense procedure apply 
to all offenses listed below. Citations charging these offenses must meet the 
requirements of minor offense rule 3. If a person charged with one of these offenses 
appears in court and is found guilty, the penalty imposed for the offense may not 
exceed the fine amount for that offense listed below. 

 
 

 

Ordinance Number Ordinance Description 
Offense 

Appearance 
type: 

Fine 
Schedule 
Amount 

Maximum 
Fine for 

Mandatory 
TBMC 10.20.020(a)(1) Parking on Roadway Prohibited for 

Purpose of Commercial Advertising 
Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.020(a)(2) Parking on Roadway Prohibited for 
Purpose of Displaying "For Sale" Signs 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.020(a)(3) Parking on Roadway Prohibited for Non- 
Emergency Vehicle Greasing/Repairing 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.020(a)(4) Parking on Roadway Prohibited for 
Commercial Car Washing 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.020(c) Parking Prohibited - Obstructing 
Movement of Vehicular Traffic 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.020(d)(3) Parking Prohibited - Camping Prohibited Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.020(d)(4) Parking Prohibited - Parking in 
Loading/Unloading Zone Prohibited 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.020(e) Parking Prohibited - Disabled or 
Abandoned Vehicle Longer Than 48 
Hours 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.030(a) Parking in Excess of Posted Time Limit- 
Harbor Parking Permit Required >12 hrs 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.030(c) Parking in Excess of Posted Time Limit- 
Park & Sell Permit Required 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.040 Parking, Standing, Stopping - Parking in 
Excess of Posted Time Limit 

Optional $50.00  

TBMC 10.20.050(b) Emergency, Street Maintenance and 
Snow  Removal Vehicles-Obstruction 

Optional $100.00  



NEW BUSINESS ITEM (B) 
DISCUSSION INFORMATION 

 

 


	AGENDA
	City Council Meeting
	MINUTES
	Departmental Reports:
	 Received the second round of CARES funding in the amount of $109,259.25.
	Tribes, territories, and local governments may use Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) payments, allocated under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. If enacted, this bipartisan legislation will allow the relief funds to be used u...
	 Thanked the Administrator for clarifying the section of Rainy Lane that was being considered for the one way. SISD was unaware of that change.


	MINUTES
	1 0 .20.070 REPEALED.
	1 0 . 20.080 VIOLATIONS-PENALTIES.

	FINES MUST BE PAID TO THE COURT.

